1980

Lynda Lea Tracy and Donna Tracy King v.
University of Utah Hospital, Does I Through X Ada
Hannah Tracy, Deceased, By and Through Sharon
Tracy Voight, Natural Daughter and Next Friend,
and Sharon Tracy Voigt : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

Follow this and additional works at: https://digitalcommons.law.byu.edu/uofu_sc2



Part of the [Law Commons](#)

Original Brief submitted to the Utah Supreme Court; funding for digitization provided by the Institute of Museum and Library Services through the Library Services and Technology Act, administered by the Utah State Library, and sponsored by the S.J. Quinney Law Library; machine-generated OCR, may contain errors.

Recommended Citation

Brief of Appellant, *Tracy & King v. University Hospital*, No. 16784 (Utah Supreme Court, 1980).
https://digitalcommons.law.byu.edu/uofu_sc2/1997

This Brief of Appellant is brought to you for free and open access by BYU Law Digital Commons. It has been accepted for inclusion in Utah Supreme Court Briefs (1965 –) by an authorized administrator of BYU Law Digital Commons. For more information, please contact hunterlawlibrary@byu.edu.

APPELLATE BRIEF

FILED

FEB 7 1980

16784

Clark, Supreme Court, Utah

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF
THE STATE OF UTAH

LYNDA LEA TRACY and
DONNA TRACY KING,

Plaintiffs

vs.

UNIVERSITY OF UTAH
HOSPITAL, DOES I
through X,

Defendants

ADA HANNAH TRACY, Deceased,
by and through Sharon Tracy Voigt,
natural daughter and next friend,
and SHARON TRACY VOIGT,

Applicants for
Intervention.

APPELLATE BRIEF

(with argument reference to Defendant Hospital's Memorandum
and Motions submitted) ~~XXXXXX~~

TO THE HONORABLE COURT,

I respectfully submit to you the following and beg of you indulgence in its form by reason of my severe poverty.

I want the Court to know I acted, am acting, and will act, in good faith.

I present my brief as a nonlawyer because I do not have the money to do anything else.

I must take my chances that it will be accepted in this form.

...The legal profession has to take a good, hard look at itself. THE MOST IMPORTANT THING IN ANY LAWSUIT IS WHAT'S RIGHT, HONORABLE, DECENT, FAIR, JUST.

Yet -- in seeking legal assistance in this and other suits I have -- the lawyers told me: I would be open to malpractice if I tried to practice in another State.

Come on! What is the matter with lawyers and Judges? A courtroom is not a secret fraternal organization which requires a secret password!

It is a place where people come with their problems and arguments and controversies.

In this case, I wanted the death of Ada Tracy investigated -- to be sure she "got a fair deal". Such a

simple request. But what convolutions of law!

I didn't know the "secret passwords". (And neither did out-of-state lawyers.)

How do I believe this matter should have been handled by the Judge - if he were a court instead of a secret fraternal organization?

HISTORY of this legal action

A. He would have determined right off that my goal was a follow-up of the investigation begun under mandatory law of the State of Utah in the case of accidental death. Let it be remembered that the Autopsy concerned itself only with causes of death and did not even touch upon negligences. (Inquests are no longer mandatory procedures in Utah; only Autopsies...the present plaintiffs did not give permission for the Autopsy I understand.) Possibly the Autopsy did satisfy itself that no murder occurred... that is, it appeared the blow to the head was not a blunt instrument but a fall. (She was observed to have fallen several times before her death.) But no investigation or inquiry, other than such an automatic surface one, into particular negligences was made. That is, no inquest was held to determine whether proper safeguards were taken to insure that the deceased did not fall again, after having fallen prior to the accidental fall that resulted in her death.

B. It would have determined right off that all parties should be listed upon the Complaint filed...that is, all plaintiffs and all DOE defendants.

C. The Motion to Intervene should have been granted upon its first presentation insofar as the listing of all proper plaintiffs. There should have been no question about this point of law and procedure. Tracy Voigt should have been included...if Lynda and Donna were.

(i.e., Ada Tracy, the deceased, had three daughters who constitute her heirs at law.)

OR,

the present plaintiffs dismissed and Ada Tracy, the deceased, allowed to be the only plaintiff (the TRADITION is heirs as plaintiffs in accidental death cases; and as to the malpractice causes of action, the decedent is TRADITIONALLY the plaintiff...)

Tracy Voigt contends to list BOTH heirs and deceased is proper...arguably optional.

In common law, a dead person was considered "beyond recompense". (So for death the only recourse was for Murder, under criminal law, where the murderer was executed (or imprisoned)...a tooth for a tooth concept... "punitive"....)

Then, someone got the idea that the heirs were deprived of society and could sue for that deprivation if negligence occurred in an accidental death. So, it was "deprivation" and not "recompense" which formed early basis for suits in accidents.

"Accidents", even with some negligence on the part of the defendant, were considered "acts of God", in common law. Whereas, the malpractice portion of the law inconsistently developed from the high standards "professionals" were supposed to work under, and they weren't supposed to have "accidents" like other people.

(e.g., in a civil malpractice suit, "punitive damages" for negligence toward a deceased plaintiff BY A PROFESSIONAL. The early basis for suits in malpractice stemmed from "punitive" rather than "deprivation".)

D. It is Tracy Voigt's contention that this is an action begun --

(a) as to plaintiffs...while bad faith on the part of the filing plaintiffs would appear to have been an issue, by the omission of a known plaintiff...

(b) as to the DOE defendants....apparently filing plaintiffs acted in good faith...

THEREFORE: the retroactive section relied upon for formal notice to the DOE defendants should have no more effect (in dismissal) than did the failure of notice to plaintiff Tracy Voigt. (this makes the court appear more consistent)

THUS: this should be considered an action begun by a Motion to Intervene and not by a complaint...and the retroactive section inapplicable--or allowable of curing. It is one fine precedent begun in law to give notice of intent to sue prior to a formal filing IN ORDER THAT A MAN MAY CORRECT THE CAUSE OF ACTION, if he can.

HOWEVER: the Constitution forbids ^{retro}prospective laws, and this retroactive section becomes just that if it bars causes of action which otherwise would have been timely filed...(another argument for "curing" the defect, without dismissal).

E. It is only fair that since the original plaintiffs were not dismissed out of court because no notice was given to this plaintiff, neither should these Intervening Plaintiffs have been dismissed out of Court because no formal notice was given to the DOE defendants.

It should be noted that these Intervening Plaintiffs were the ones who gave formal notice to the Defendant Hospital. And these Intervening Plaintiffs were properly parties to the action already filed with the Court. For these two reasons alone, these Intervening Plaintiffs (or Tracy Voigt; or Ada Tracy) should have been allowed without question by the original court.

The two questions which perhaps might have been in issue therefore, in the original Motion:

- (a) the adding of DOE defendants
- (b) the adding of causes of action

The adding of causes of action should have been allowed without question by the original court.

This leaves only the issue of the adding of DOE defendants without the formal notice required by a retroactive statute.

DOE defendants, like Intervening Plaintiffs, may be added anytime prior to trial... that is why lawyers put in DOE defendants on all complaint filing. Indeed, in some instances it might be argued that when the identity of certain DOE defendants are discovered after judgment, named defendants might recover from said DOE defendants, within statutes of limitation.

F. I am aware that the Defendants, and each of them, have denied the allegations,[#] (at the time my attorney Black withdrew, I called Doctor Jensen asking if he would go over the medical records with me, which I then had, to explain his reasons for surgery...I do not believe that was an unreasonable or unethical request... he refused, saying he had said all he had to say in his letter to my sister Lynda). However, I have questions, and I do not believe it is unreasonable that they be answered. (at that same time, when I was in Salt Lake City, I called the Insurance Adjuster, asking for a diagram of the bed and explanation of the guard rails...it appears these should not be too easily undone by a "befuddled" patient...indeed, I would suggest to the hospital that in particular cases, they be wired with a buzzer system... for falls and dizziness is a common complication in open heart surgery)*

THE COMPLAINT OF INTERVENING PLAINTIFFS sets out all of the allegations and many of the questions, including:

(1) I question that a lumbar procedure (the exact name escapes me, and my notes are in storage in a different city...but it takes fluid from the spine to test the pressure on the brain) was not necessary as preliminary investigation prior to burr hole surgery to remove hematoma (I believe this test should have been done.)

(2) I question that Ada Tracy's surgical wound was open an unusually long time...this makes it a foregone conclusion you're going to have an infection develop.

(3) A question I have not had opportunity to study properly yet, not finding an appropriate drug textbook, and not having the appropriate portions of the Autopsy: was any test made to determine the drug content of Ada Tracy's blood to determine if her blood pressure was so low due to an overdose. If she obtained (or had in her possession) her own medications, and "her head was going around", she may have taken an overdose....

(4) from past experience with the deceased, I believe firmly that her heart condition was partially psychosomatic....

These are only a few of the questions I have; I believe that I should have the right to ask these questions ...and to require the Defendants, and each of them, to answer my questions...BY SUIT IF NECESSARY. I do not believe I should be penalized for an error of court; my initial motion was timely...I should have been granted entrance, and causes of action added...the only point in controversy should have been the adding of DOE defendants, whether before or after notice. Because due process was

denied her...and if her briefs are read thoroughly speak well for her tehcnical argument...she should not be discriminated against because of her slowness by reason of her poverty and lack of formal legal education, but instead should be given a certain leniency by the Court to compensate for these obstacles in the path of having her questions answered. The Appellate Courts should not have refused jurisdiction initially, but should have let her argue through...by reason of their experience and formal legal education, it should have been immediately discerned that by right, all plaintiffs should be included in the action...whether on the filed causes of action or upon those plus additional causes of action; therefore, even though the Court might become impatient with her grappling with technicalities, ONE POINT (i.e., by right all plaintiffs should be included in the action) should have been sufficient reason to allow due process to continue its orderly process to allow these Intervening Plaintiffs their constitutional right to petition for redress.

DEFENDANT HOSPITAL ARGUMENT: res judicata

the April Motion to Intervene pending the appeal on the first Motion to Intervene must be considered -- in effect, and for all practical purposes -- a MOTION TO RECONSIDER. And is entered SIMULTANEOUSLY while an appeal is pending in the interests of time and the speedy conclusion of this controversy...and should not in any way prejudice or throw out of Court the original (on appeal) Motion to Intervene.....

Defendant Hospital contends that Tracy Voigt is not precluded from recovery of her share of any damages -- which is an argument that indeed Judge Winder's April Order denying intervention was a "without prejudice" Order, for if it were a "with prejudice" Order he would have - in effect - denied Tracy Voigt's claim to any portion of the action at law.

RES JUDICATA

I.

BEFORE APPLYING THE RES JUDICATA DOCTRINE A "THING" MUST BE
HEARD ON ITS MERITS.

The word "prejudice" in law does not mean
the Judge "plays favorites". Or that "he doesn't like one
party".

These Intervening Plaintiffs contend that the
Court erred in dismissing them out of court, but should have
allowed them to "cure" the "defect" of the "retroactively
provided formal notice". This (dismissal) is an inconsistency
in law, and the provisions of law -- which is a serious
error of court.

II.

ADMITTEDLY, (these Intervening Plaintiffs contend) UNLESS
THE DOCTRINE OF RES JUDICATA CAN BE APPLIED IN A DISMISSAL,
A DISMISSAL IS ERROR OF COURT.*

III.

NO PARTY SHOULD SUFFER FOR ERROR OF COURT, OR TECHNICAL
INCOMPETENCE OF A TRIAL JUDGE.

*see argument on page _____ (In addition, this writer is
cognizant of the fact that for every rule there is an exception!)

Sponsored by the J. S. Gurney Law Library. Printing for this document provided by the Institute of Museum and Library Services
Library Services and Technology Act, administered by the Utah State Library.
Machine-generated OCR, may contain errors.

ERGO:

A. The appeal(s) were not heard on the merits in either the Utah Supreme Court or the United States Supreme Court.

B. When error of court is found, precedent is to allow a party rehearing (most easily located precedent in criminal law; but these Intervening Plaintiffs contend that:

AN ILLEGAL ACTION OF A JUDGE - OR A SERIOUS TECHNICAL ERROR - NULLIFIES HIS DETERMINATION IN CIVIL ACTIONS AS WELL AS CRIMINAL, allowing appeal of that decision, or reconsideration.

NOTE: Error)s(of court ~~xxxxxx~~ in this action will be developed further in Oral Argument.
And Definition of "Error of Court" explored.

IV.

In regard to Defendant Hospital's contention that the April 12 Order of Judge Winder bars these Intervening Plaintiff's forever from pursuing, I believe it is right and just to state that these were only alternative motions...offered as appeasement, to more hastily bring this matter to a settlement or to adjudication...but that the lower court lacked jurisdiction, pending appeal; and could not erase from the record a standing Motion to Intervene. (By granting it, he could make the appeal "moot"; by denial, the appeal stands.)

There is no reason to believe that Judge Winder acted in good faith and/or in technical competence in April in denying a Motion to add Tracy Voigt as a plaintiff in this action, as his previous objection in November had been cured. (Formal notice had been given to the DOE Defendants.) Judge Winder states no grounds or law in support of his Order that Intervening Plaintiffs were not proper parties and had as much claim as did plaintiffs Lynda and Donna.

There is no reason to believe Judge Winder's Order at that time was any more a "with prejudice" Order than his November Order; but that it was technically a "without prejudice" order, for the Order had no basis in law or fact - except a "refusal of jurisdiction" at that time.

To take appeal on TWO Motions to Intervene would be frivolous and an insult to the Utah Supreme Court...the matter at the time of the April hearing was already before the Supreme Court of the State of Utah (that Court refused jurisdiction after April). The Supreme Court of Utah should have taken jurisdiction.

(I do not take any blame for a non-lawyer technical incompetence, because IF THE COURTS HAD PROCEEDED "IN DUE PROCESS", it would have given me the time necessary to counter arguments and to tie up the loose pieces. More blame must be laid upon the Court for technicalities, than upon a nonlawyer.)

The Motion to Intervene pending the appeal on the first Motion to Intervene (i.e, the second Motion to Intervene) must be considered -- in effect, and for all practical purposes -- a MOTION TO RECONSIDER. And is entered SIMULTANEOUSLY while an appeal is pending in the interests of time and the speedy conclusion of this controversy...And did not in any way (and should not in any way) prejudice or throw out of Court the original (on appeal) Motion to Intervene.

V.

As to Defendant Hospital's contention that Tracy Voigt is not precluded from recovery of her share of such damages, if any, is an argument that indeed Judge Winder's Order denying intervention was a "without prejudice" Order, for if it were "with prejudice" he would have - in effect - denied Tracy Voigt's claim to any portion of the action at law.

VI.

As to Defendant Hospital's argument that Tracy Voigt failed to complete appeal...please be advised that not having a filing fee, Tracy Voigt filed a Motion to Proceed in Forma Pauperis, which was in order... and remains so (see Poverty arguments herein).

...when the Utah Supreme Court refused jurisdiction (Defendant Hospital argued the dismissal in lower court was not a final judgment...that is, AFTER April hearing he argued this), Tracy Voigt attempted to get the United States Supreme Court to assume jurisdiction over the issue of Intervening Plaintiffs RIGHT to be party plaintiffs in this action. The U. S. Supreme Court refused to hear the matter. (They refused jurisdiction) By these actions, Tracy Voigt was timely and was prosecuting this action timely.

RES JUDICATA ... DEFINED

from BLACK'S LAW DICTIONARY:

Res judicata ... designates a point or question or subject matter which was in controversy or dispute and has been authoritatively and finally settled by the decision of a Court; that issuable fact once legally determined*is conclusive as between parties in same action or subsequent proceeding ...

... A matter adjudged; a thing judicially acted upon or decided; a thing or matter settled by judgment*. Rule that a final judgment*rendered by a court of competent jurisdiction* on the merits*is conclusive as to the rights of the parties and privies, and to them constitutes an absolute bar to subsequent action involving the same claim, demand or cause of action.

...We do not need to read further... Let us examine the underlined key ingredients to res judicata....

*see argument next page

RES JUDICATA ... defined
continued

A. "legally determined" ...

it is not unreasonable to define this as "legally" (as opposed to "illegally") determined; rather than as: "a" decision made by "a" Judge. (A serious error of Court possibly renders it an "illegally" determined decision?)

B. "competent jurisdiction" ...

ALL courts refused jurisdiction, in the initial proceeding by these Intervening Plaintiffs*

(the lower court said - in effect - that it could not take jurisdiction UNTIL notice was given as provided in a retroactive statute).

q (both the Utah Supreme Court and the United States Supreme Court refused to hear the dismissal on its merits; that is, they both refused jurisdiction)

C. "on its merits" ...

includes due processes of law and argument; i.e., the contentions of each party have been thoroughly and completely investigated, pondered, and a due-process decision made. This is a requirement in any "with prejudice" ruling (except by waiver of the parties, e.g., through out-of-court settlement).

*see footnote set out p. ____a.

footnote to p. _____

"jurisdiction-----refusal"...

This I shall develop in Oral Argument (obviously, the Judge already had jurisdiction of the investigation of the death of Ada Tracy; and these Intervening Plaintiffs are arguing his refusal was error of court by reason of the fact he already had jurisdiction ; and the retroactive formal notice in the case OF AN ACTION ORIGINATED BY A COMPLAINT was not applicable in an action originated by a Motion to Intervene. That is, he should have granted at least a portion of the Motion to Intervene, rather than denying the complete Motion in his concern for the rights of the DOE defendants.)

A "without prejudice" ruling is one in which it is conceivable more investigation, due process, pondering and argument is needed - and the Court is willing to admit it. OR REQUIRED TO ADMIT IT. (before the matter at controversy is legally disposed of)

(The second Judge's "with prejudice" order as to proper plaintiffs and to DOE defendants might appear to be at issue until final judgment in the matter. It would appear that such a ruling could be countered by a change of venue motion, as all plaintiffs should be included in this one wrongful death action - by right. And each plaintiff has a right to counsel of his own choice, even should he be forced to "represent himself". This writer has chosen to appeal, rather than to present a motion for change of venue to another court thereby challenging the second Judge's "with prejudice" as to proper plaintiffs.)

D. "by judgment" "a final judgment" ...

Defendant hospital argued in the Utah Supreme Court that the dismissal was not "a final judgment" and for that reason, the Utah Supreme Court should not take jurisdiction, in the original proceedings of these Intervening Plaintiffs.

From that refusal to take jurisdiction, it is reasonable to imply that the Utah Supreme Court has already ruled that "a final judgment" has not been rendered, and therefore res judicata may not be applied by the lower court to ...

POVERTY arguments

Tracy Voigt's income last year (1979) was under \$5,000 and out of that she had the expenses of four lawsuits. In addition she was involved in political controversies (and/or "campaigning").

And in trying to establish herself as a writer, which is the career she has chosen for herself. However, Tracy Voigt has been unsuccessful in marketing her work.

I believe this puts me into a poverty level among the poorest in this nation. This is a gross injustice given the abilities and skills I possess. And is, in my opinion, and I do allege that it is, a conspiracy against me.

POVERTY arguments

My health is too important to me to put this lawsuit over it. I need certain amounts of food and sleep and those two items come first.

That means

- (a) looking for a job (permanent and/or temporary, as I am again unemployed
- (b) working whenever I can get a temporary typing assignment for little money. I make from \$25 to \$150 a week.

(Rarely \$150 a week because that means 40 hours and short assignments mean you have a non-working "break" time between jobs. But you are still spending time going to agencies, and checking out newspaper ads.

Whatever time and money I have left goes for my other projects. I would rather lose out in this lawsuit by missing a deadline (which I might do anyway even meeting deadlines and submitting perfect briefs) than ruin my health to meet deadlines.

I require a high protein diet, because I have a "heart murmur" and because apparently I have a tendency toward the formation of "skin tabs" which could result in cancer. Right now, that means (since I don't have cooking facilities) I eat two to three cans of tuna a day (200% to 300% of the RDA, in order to maintain my body cells at working level). I also have problems with my teeth, which is another reason for a high protein diet.

POVERTY arguments

I do not believe it is unreasonable to ask the Court to care -- and to have the necessary patience -- for a poverty-stricken party who is acting in good faith (see rest of "Appellate Brief").

BECAUSE:

A. Please remember I sought -- and found -- a lawyer immediately upon learning of the death. I hope that my lawyer's withdrawal and my sisters' opposition to my being included in this action, will not prejudice the Court against all of my arguments.

Financially it is better for me not to pursue this matter. In recent years, I have been hurt very badly and in looking back over my life it appears "I took the path of least resistance to keep the peace"; and I made a resolution I would not do so in the future but would stand and (a) fight for what I thought was right if it were in my "pathway" and (b) would finish what I start. If I had done this years ago, my sisters would not be opposing me and Ada Tracy would still be alive today.

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