Brigham Young University Law School BYU Law Digital Commons

Utah Supreme Court Briefs (1965 –)

1980

Lynda Lea Tracy and Donna Tracy King v. University of Utah Hospital, Does I Through X Ada Hannah Tracy, Deceased, By and Through Sharon Tracy Voight, Natural Daughter and Next Friend, and Sharon Tracy Voigt: Brief of Respondent University of Utah Hospital

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF THE KIND OF CASE

This is a suit by plaintiffs, Lynda Lea Tracy and Donna
Tracy King to recover for the wrongful death of their mother
arising out of her treatment at the University of Utah Hospital.
Applicants for Intervention and Appellant are the decedent and
a third daughter, Sharon Tracy Voigt.

DISPOSITION IN LOWER COURT

Appellant's third motion to intervene was heard on November 16, 1979 by the Honorable Homer F. Wilkinson, District Judge. The motion was denied on the ground that a prior motion to intervene had been granted with prejudice and that the granting of the third motion was barred by the doctrine of resjudicata.

RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

Respondents seek affirmance of the order denying Appellant's motion to intervene.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

Because the statement of facts in Appellant's brief is incomplete, Respondent will here set forth facts it believes are material to this appeal.

On or about May 15, 1975, Ada Hannah Tracy died while a patient at the University of Utah Hospital. She was survived by three daughters including Lynda Lea Tracy, Donna Tracy King and Appellant.

On or about January 20, 1977, Lynda Lea Tracy and Donna Tracy King instituted an action against the University of Utah Hospital in the District Court of Salt Lake County seeking damages for the wrongful death of Ada Hannah Tracy.

On or about November 10, 1977, Sharon Tracy, sometimes known in these proceedings as Sharon Tracy Voigt, appearing pro se, filed a motion on behalf of herself and Ada Hannah

Tracy, her deceased mother, to intervene in the pending action initially brought by her sisters.

The motion to intervene was argued before the Honorable David K. Winder, District Judge, on February 14, 1978. At the conclusion of the hearing Judge Winder denied the motion to intervene without prejudice (R. 64).

Appellant took an appeal to this Court from Judge Winder's order (R. 64). On or about May 25, 1978, Respondent filed a motion to dismiss the appeal on the ground that the denial of a motion to intervene without prejudice was not a final order within the meaning of Rule 72 (a), Utah Rules of Civil Procedure. This Court agreed and on June 7, 1978, granted the motion to dismiss the appeal (R. 177-178).

During the time this Court was considering the appeal from Judge Winder's order denying intervention, Appellant filed a second motion to intervene along with other motions (R. 122-123). A hearing was held thereon on April 10, 1978, before Judge Winder. At the conclusion of the hearing Judge Winder entered his order dated April 12, 1978, denying Appellant's second motion to intervene (R. 130-131).

Appellant attempted to file a notice of appeal from the April 12, 1978 order but failed and refused to pay the filing fees required by law after notice that the appeal would not be accepted without the fees. A copy of Judge Winder's letter to Appellant on May 3, 1978, relating to the filing of the appeal

is at R. 153-154. The notice of appeal was never filed from Judge Winder's order of April 12, 1978, denying the second motion to intervene.

On or about March 1, 1979, Appellant filed her third motion to intervene in the pending action (R. 339-340). A hearing was held thereon on November 16, 1979, before the Honorable Homer F. Wilkinson, District Judge. Judge Wilkinson entered his order on November 30, 1979, (R. 408-409) denying Appellant's third motion to intervene on the ground that Judge Winder's order of April 12, 1978, (R. 130-131) denied the same motion with prejudice and was a valid, binding order which barred the granting of the third motion to intervene under the doctrine of res judicata.

ARGUMENT

POINT I

JUDGE WINDER'S ORDER DENYING APPELLANT'S SECOND MOTION TO INTERVENE WAS A FINAL APPEALABLE ORDER FROM WHICH NO APPEAL WAS TAKEN AND WHICH BARS APPELLANT'S RIGHT TO INTERVENE.

Rules 72 (a), Utah Rules of Civil Procedures provides in material part as follows:

An appeal may be taken to the Supreme Court from all final orders and judgments, in accordance with these rules; provided, that when other claims remain to be determined in the proceedings, a party may preserve his right to appeal on the decided issue until a final determination of the other claims by filing with the trial court and serving on the adverse parties within the time permitted in Rule 73 (a), a notice of his intention to do so.

The above rule provides that either a notice of appeal or a notice of intent to appeal must be filed within one month from the entry of an appealable order.

Orders which finally adjudicate a person's status in a suit or controversy are by definition final orders from which appeal can be taken. Judge Winder's second order finally adjudicated Appellant's right to intervene in the suit in that it was not granted "without prejudice". See Rule 41 (b), Utah Rules of Civil Procedure. In Utah the denial of a motion to intervene with prejudice is an appealable order.

In <u>Commercial Block Realty Company v. United States</u>

<u>Fidelity and Guaranty Co.</u> 28 P.2d 1081, 83 Utah 414 (1934),
this Court said:

We believe that the better reasoned decisions are to the effect that where it is a proper case for intervention a judgment denying the right to intervene is appealable. At 1082.

This Court again affirmed that an order refusing to permit intervention is appealable in Tripp v. District Court of Third
Judicial District, 56 P.2d 1355, 89 Utah 8 (1936).

Since Judge Winder's order of April 12, 1978, denying

Appellant the right to intervene was an appealable order, an

appeal or notice of intent to appeal was required to have been

filed within one month of the entry of the order. Appellant

failed to do so even in the face of precise instructions from

the Court, and the order must now stand as the final adjudication, on the merits, on her rights to intervene in the pending litigation.

Judge Winder's order of April 12, 1978, is res judicata and bars the granting of a subsequent motion to intervene made on behalf of the same parties and for the same reasons. Therefore, Judge Wilkinson's order of November 30, 1979, denying Appellant's third motion to intervene was proper and made without error.

POINT II

THE TRIAL COURT HAD JURISDICTION TO CONSIDER AND DETERMINE THE MERITS OF APPELLANT'S SECOND MOTION TO INTERVENE WHILE THE ORDER ON APPELLANT'S FIRST MOTION TO INTERVENE WAS ON APPEAL BEFORE THIS COURT

Appellant contends that the lower court lacked jurisdiction to hear and consider her second motion to intervene during the time the denial of her first motion to intervene was on appeal to this Court.

It is the general rule that an appeal of a final order, when duly perfected, divests the trial court of jurisdiction of the cause and transfers jurisdiction to the appellate court. However, this rule does not apply in the case of a nonappealable interlocutory order.

12 AM. JUR. Appeal and Error §357 states:

A litigant cannot deprive the trial court of jurisdiction by taking an appeal from a nonappealable interlocutory order, and even an appeal from an appealable intermediate or interlocutory order does not divest the trial court of jurisdiction to proceed in matters not involved in the appeal. In <u>Veazey v. City of Durham</u>, 57 SE 2d 377 (N.C. 1950), the defendant asked the trial court to order a compulsory reference of the case. When the trial court declined to enter such an order, the defendant appealed to the North Carolina Supreme Court. The trial court retained jurisdiction over the cause and tried the matter on its merits during the time its prior order was on appeal to the Supreme Court. At some time following trial on the merits, the Supreme Court considered and dismissed the appeal on the ground that the order was not an appealable order and was thus not subject to review.

The defendant appealed a second time contending that the trial court had no jurisdiction to undertake further proceedings on the cause while the Judge's first order was on appeal. In its opinion the North Carolina Supreme Court addressed the issue that is now before this Court on this appeal.

[W]e are presently concerned with this precise question: What is the effect of an appeal from a nonappealable interlocutory order upon proceedings in the Superior Court pending the dismissal of an appeal by the Supreme Court? . . .

". . .[A] litigant cannot deprive the Supreme Court of jurisdiction to try and determine a case on its merits by taking an appeal to the Supreme Court from a nonappealable interlocutory order of the Superior Court. A contrary decision would necessarily require an acceptance of the paradoxical paralogism that a party to an action can paralyze the administration of justice in the Superior Court by the simple expedient of doing what the law does not allow him to do, i.e. taking an appeal from an order which is not appealable.

Our conclusion on this aspect of the controversy finds full sanction in previous decisions of this Court adjudging that when an appeal is taken to the Supreme Court from an interlocutory order of the Superior Court which is not subject to appeal, the Superior Court need not stay proceedings, but may disregard the appeal and proceed to try the action while the appeal on the interlocutory matter is in Supreme Court. (Citing cases) Moreover, this conclusion is sustained by the repeated cases holding by implication rather than by express declaration that an appeal to the Supreme Court from a nonappealable order of the Superior Court confers no power on the Supreme Court to decide the appeal and that the Supreme Court must dismiss the appeal because it cannot properly exercise a jurisdiction which it does not possess. 57 SE 2d 377 at 382, 383.

The North Carolina Supreme Court concluded that it had no jurisdiction to hear the nonappealable order. Therefore, the trial court was not divested of jurisdiction in the matter. Thus, the orders and judgments of the trial court during the pending appeal of the nonappealable order were rendered within the full jurisdiction of the court and were binding on the parties.

Here Appellant appealed Judge Winder's first order denying her right to intervene without prejudice. The order was found by this Court to be nonappealable, and the appeal was summarily dismissed. Under the teachings of Veazey v. City of Durham the trial court retained jurisdiction over the matter for all purposes.

While the first nonappealable order was pending in this

Court, Appellant sought to take advantage of the continuing jurisdiction of the trial court and filed various other motions including a second motion seeking to intervene in the pending action. The trial court properly exercised its jurisdiction, and considered and ruled upon the motion. Judge Winder's order of April 12, 1978, (R. 130-131) denied Appellant's motion to intervene with prejudice. No appeal was taken from it and it, therefore, became final.

Appellant has raised the issue that her second motion to intervene was but a motion to reconsider. It should be noted that the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure make no provision for such a motion. Drury v. Lunceford, 415 P2d 662, 14 Utah 2974 (1966). There can be no mistake that Appellant's second motion was a separately filed motion and that it sought leave for Appellant to intervene in the pending suit. Thus, Appellant's contention is without merit and has no effect on the validity of Judge Winder's order denying the motion.

POINT III

APPELLANT IS NOT PRECLUDED FROM RECOVERY OF HER SHARE OF SUCH DAMAGES AS MAY ULTIMATELY BE AWARDED.

Judge Wilkinson's order of November 30, 1979, contains a provision which preserves to Appellant her rightful share of any recovery for wrongful death which may be made in the pending litigation. That portion of the order reads as follows:

Lynda Lea Tracy and Donna Tracy King are entitled to prosecute this action for the benefit of all heirs of Ada Hannah Tracy, deceased, and the proceeds of any settlement or judgment rendered herein

shall be held by the present Plaintiffs for the use and benefit of said heirs, including Tracy Voigt, in accordance with their lawful claim upon said proceeds.

Judge Wilkinson's order is wholly consistent with Utah law. In Parmley v. Pleasant Valley Coal Co., 228 P. 557, 64 Utah 125 (1924), the Supreme Court held that there was only one cause of action for wrongful death in the State of Utah and that if an action for wrongful death is prosecuted by less than all of the heirs of the decedent, they prosecute it for the benefit of all heirs. This Court said:

Nor is the omitted heir, if there be one, without a remedy. If damages are recovered, each heir is entitled to his proportionate share, whether he was a party to the action or not, and, if his share is withheld from him, he may always sustain an action against his co-heirs for contribution. At 562.

Therefore, Appellant will not be prejudiced by denial of her motion to intervene.

SUMMARY

Judge Wilkinson did not err in denying Appellant's third motion to intervene. The issue had been finally adjudicated in a prior hearing before Judge Winder who had jurisdiction to hear and to enter the dismissal order from which no appeal was taken. Judge Wilkinson properly denied the third motion to intervene under the doctrine of res judicata.

Further, Judge Wilkinson's order preserves the right of recovery of Appellant, and she, therefore, is not prejudiced

by the ruling of the Court.

The Judgment of the lower court should be affirmed.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED this 18 day of March, 1980.

SNOW, CHRISTENSEN & MARTINEAU

By: |5| | Merlin R. I

Attorneys for Defendant-Respondent